When are battery electric vehicles economically convenient? A sensitivity analysis based on multi-carrier residential energy system renovation modelling

Lorenzo Rinaldi¹*, Nicolò Golinucci¹, Giulia Guerrieri¹, Francesco Davide Sanvito¹, Matteo Vincenzo Rocco¹, Emanuela Colombo¹

¹Department of Energy, Politecnico di Milano, Milan, Italy

Corresponding author*: L. Rinaldi, Tel.: +39 0223993866; address: Via Lambruschini 4, 20156 Milan, Italy. E-mail: <u>lorenzo.rinaldi@polimi.it</u>

Supplementary material

The present document contains detailed complementary information related to the main manuscript. It is organized by firstly describing the extensive modelling process of the exogenous (input) parameters, and by secondly providing additional insights about the model output, which may help in complementing the discussion of the results performed in the main manuscript. The full set of input and results files (a) along with the model code (b) are available on Github at:

- a. <u>https://github.com/eNextHub/MARIOU-RESBEV</u>
- b. https://github.com/eNextHub/mario_u

Table of contents

1. Model description	2
1.1. Mathematical formulation	3
2. Input data	4
2.1. Energy need profiles modelling	4
2.1.1 Electricity	5
2.1.2 Heating	6
2.1.3 Cooling	8
2.1.4 Transport	8
2.1.5 Domestic hot water	9
2.1.6 Cooking 1	10
2.2. Techno-economic data 1	10
3. Results: complementary information 1	11
References 1	15

1. Model description

The underlying mathematical formulation of the adopted energy system optimization model relies on the traditional algebraic structure adopted within Input-Output analysis (IOA), getting inspiration from the Rectangular Choice of Technology (RCOT) model proposed by Duchin and Levine [1]. IOA is a widely diffused cost accounting technique, generally adopted for the analysis of national economies as well as for assessing environmental footprints of products along supply chains [2], and constitutes the computational structure of LCA [3]. Such structure allows the model to be flexible to any kind of extension and integration with multiple energy needs and supply technologies and allows for optimal sizing of a domestic energy system and related dispatch strategy selection.

The next paragraphs describe the mathematical structure, the reference energy system used in the proposed modelling exercise, as well as the parameters whose impact on BEV adoption has been assessed. Please refer to Table 1 and Table 2 for the nomenclature.

Table 1. Set of indices

Indices	Symbol
Energy needs	n
Energy commodities	С
Activities	а
Technologies	t
Storage technologies	S
Years	у
Hours	h

Table 2. Exogenous and endogenous parameters

Exogenous parameters	Symbol	Size
Final demand	Y	$n \times h$
Specific production matrix	m	a × c
Specific intermediate consumption matrix	u	c × a
Specific operational costs	0	a × h
Specific investment costs	k	t × 1
Specific CO ₂ emissions (related to operation)	e	a × 1
Specific embedded CO ₂ emissions (related to manufacturing)	f	t × 1
Availability of activity	\mathbf{A}_{a}	a × h
Availability of technology	\mathbf{A}_t	$t \times h$
Discount rate	r	1×1
Special identity matrix - use side	Ι	n × c
Special identity matrix - supply side	J	t × a
Endogenous parameters	Symbol	Size
Total demand (intermediate and final)	R	$(n \times t) \times h$
Deployed capacity	D	t × 1
Operating capacity	С	$t \times h$
Storage state of charge	В	$s \times h$
Production of commodities	X _c	$c \times h$
Production by activities	X _a	c × a
Production by needs	S _n	$n \times h$
Production of technologies	S _t	$t \times h$

1.1. Mathematical formulation

In a general energy system, a selected set t of multi-carrier technologies, along with s storage technologies, are exploited to enable a number a of activities. In turn, such activities are responsible for the supply of a range of c energy commodities: in the adopted modelling framework, the information on the amount of commodities produced is contained in the specific production matrix **m**. Furthermore, commodities can be consumed by activities themselves (to be interpreted as intermediate demand) and by the final user; while the former transactions are described in the specific intermediate consumption matrix **u**, the latter are included within the final demand matrix **Y**. Finally, multiple commodities can compete one another for the fulfilment of the same energy need (needs are indicated with n). The energy needs and, consequentially, the operation of technologies is represented for each hourly time-step h and each year y of the considered time horizon.

The optimization algorithm of the model is oriented to the minimization of the total discounted cost (net present cost, *NPC*) of the energy system over a period of y years. The algorithm works in *perfect foresight* mode, meaning the energy needs along the whole time horizon are known since the start of the run period. Equation (1) shows the objective function of the model.

$$Obj \to \min(NPC) = \min \sum_{t} \left[k_t \mathbf{D}_t + \sum_{y} \frac{\sum_{h} \mathbf{o}_a \mathbf{X}_h}{(1+r)^y} \right]$$
(1)

The total investment cost of the capacity deployed is represented by the term $k_t D_t$, where k_t represents a vector of specific investment costs per unit of installed capacity of technology t. The specific operation costs of activities o_a are multiplied by the related hourly production X_h , then summed over the hourly time-steps h and annualized according to a discount rate r. The model is then subject to a constraint over the energy need supply (**R**) and demand (**S**_n) balance, as described by Equation (2). The two supply and demand terms are respectively defined as follows in Equation (3) and (4). The energy balance is complemented by two additional terms:

- the surplus production of renewable technologies (Equation (5)): by means of the A_t operator, the total production of all the activities performed by a single technology cannot overcome the availability of the technology itself.
- the adjustment applied to the total energy demand driven by specific technologies, such as thermal insulation (Equation (6)). In particular, D_{TI} is the installed units of TI technology installed (it can be just 0 or 1 unit) and Y_{TI} represents the correction applied to the final demand matrix Y, which is a null matrix except for the *heating* need row.

$$\mathbf{R} = \mathbf{S}_n \tag{2}$$

$$\mathbf{R} = \mathbf{Y} + \mathbf{I} \cdot [\mathbf{u} \cdot (\mathbf{s} \cdot \mathbf{X})] \tag{3}$$

$$\mathbf{S}_n = \mathbf{I} \cdot \mathbf{X}_n \tag{4}$$

$$\mathbf{J} \cdot \mathbf{X} \le \ \mathbf{\widehat{D}} \cdot \mathbf{A}_t \tag{5}$$

$$\mathbf{R} = \mathbf{Y} + \mathbf{I} \cdot [\mathbf{u} \cdot (\mathbf{s} \cdot \mathbf{X}_n)] - (\mathbf{D}_{\mathrm{TI}} \cdot \mathbf{Y}_{\mathrm{TI}})$$
(6)

The total demand **R**, in turn, is equal to the summation of the final demand of needs **Y** and of the intermediate demand. The latter represents the energy needed by each technology to operate and is built upon the specific intermediate demand matrix **u**, which is multiplied by the production matrix \mathbf{X}_n . Two additional contributions to the energy balance equation need to be further reported: (i) the surplus production of renewable technologies: their production is not linked to the energy demand but to environmental unpredictability; (ii) the adjustment to be applied to the total energy demand driven by the presence of specific technologies: this is the case of thermal insulation which has been modelled.

Given the definition of maximum available operating capacity by technology (C_t) in Equation (7), the production of commodities by technologies is constrained to be lower than C_t in every year and hour (Equation (8)):

$$\mathbf{C}_t = (\mathbf{J}^{\mathrm{T}} \cdot \mathbf{D}) \cdot \mathbf{A}_t \tag{7}$$

$$\mathbf{X}_{c,h,y} \le \mathbf{C}_{t,h,y} \tag{8}$$

where, \mathbf{A}_t is defined as technology availability, which indicates the maximum production technology t can supply in each hour. To manage the state of charge (**B**) of the storage technologies, two different constraints are set. The first one, Equation (9), avoids to overcharge beyond the nominal capacity, the second instead, Equation (10), fixes a minimum state of charge (depth of discharge, DoD) in order not to overexploit the capacity. The nominal capacity of each storage technology is indicated henceforth as C_s . It is worth noting that all storage technologies are able to perform two activities: to charge and to discharge. In the next two Equations, the subscripts *ch* and *dis* identify these two activities.

$$\mathbf{X}_{s,ch} - \mathbf{X}_{s,dis} \le \widehat{\mathbf{D}_s} C_s \tag{9}$$

$$\mathbf{X}_{s,ch} - \mathbf{X}_{s,dis} \ge \widehat{\mathbf{D}}_s C_s DoD \tag{10}$$

Being the BEV modelled as a storage technology, these last two constraints are also adopted to describe the charge and discharge dynamic of the vehicle battery.

2. Input data

2.1. Energy need profiles modelling

This Section aims at describing the modelling process adopted for deriving the demand profiles of all the energy needs for the Italian context.

The energy demands have been calculated for 28 days with a time step of 1 hour scaling up which, the full year profile has been obtained: these 28 days correspond, in fact, to 4 specific weeks of the year, one representing each season. More precisely:

- the first week corresponds to a winter week (the last week of January, being the coldest week in 2019 in Milan according to the Renewables Ninja database [4], [5]);
- the second week represents the spring season (the first week of May, including an Italian celebration day as May 1st);
- the third instead represents the summer (the last of July, being the coldest week in 2019 in Milan according to the Renewables Ninja database);
- the fourth week stands for the autumn (the first of November, including another celebration day as November 1st).

Some energy demands are affected by seasons and other also affected by the type of day (e.g. the hot water demand changes during weekend, feast day...). With the selection of these specific four weeks, it was possible to consider both daily and seasonal demand variations.

2.1.1 Electricity

One of the principal needs in a house is the presence of electricity to supply to indispensable appliances for the most diverse activities, from cooking to cleaning, from personal care to the simple need to illuminate the environments.

Before describing the model adopted to derive the electricity load curve, it is necessary to describe a previous step: the need for lighting. This is regulated in Italy by the UNI 10.380 regulation [6] which shows the amount of lux required by each type of room. Following this regulation, it's possible to know the right amount, type and power of bulbs needed. The lux (symbol lx) is the unit of measurement for illuminance, accepted by the International System. One lux is equal to one lumen per m². The lux can be therefore defined as the luminous flux per unit of surface. Lux and lumen are units of measurement of two different physical quantities: lux is the unit of measurement of illuminance, while lumens are the unit of measurement of luminous flux. Therefore, by multiplying the lux required by each room for its dimension, it was possible to obtain the desired lumens (Equation (SM 11)).

$$Lumen_i = Lux_i \times m_i^2$$

$$Lament = Lant \times m_t$$
 11)

The letter *i* indicates the typology of room (i.e. bedroom, bathroom...). Their size has been assumed according to statistical values of floor surface. Their sum, returns the total quantity of lumens (Equation (SM 2)).

$$Lumen_{tot} = \sum_{i} Lumen_{i}$$
(SM)
12)

The number of light bulbs needed for each home has been found as follow:

$$Number of \ lamps = \frac{Lumen_{tot}}{Lumen \ of \ single \ lamp}$$
(SM) (SM) (3)

Later, in order to calculate the demand for electricity, it was necessary to create a list of appliances that are generally present in the house. Once considered these preliminary assumptions, the electricity load curve was obtained with RAMP, an open-source bottom-up stochastic model for the generation of high-resolution multienergy profiles [7]. For each appliance has been defined principally the quantity installed, the rated power expressed in Watts, the number of functioning windows to be considered, the total time the appliance is ON during the day, the percentage of total usage time subjected to random variability, the minimum time the appliance is kept on after the switch-ON event, the possible simultaneous accension of equal appliances, the all-day probable time of operation. After the characterization of all the appliances, RAMP returns an yearly electricity demand profile which is the mean of many stochastic profiles with a minute time step, which is then re-shaped in hourly resolution.

2.1.2 Heating

Not being a specific study on space heating, detailed information building thermal exchanges, windows structure and so on have been left out of scope. In particular, the method used for heating demand calculation does not consider:

- the opaque structures that delimit the apartment towards the outside;
- the transparent surfaces outwards;
- the thermal exchanges between nodes;
- the thermal capacity of nodes;
- the injections of thermal power in some nodes, by the plant and other sources (internal inputs, solar radiation...).

Therefore, the thermal balance of the inside air, the thermal zone as convection thermal exchanges, the internal inputs, like direct solar inputs through transparent surface and the flow rate have not been considered.

The work has been focused on a more general method that allows to find the heating requirement, in different buildings and locations, without the knowledge of the previous details. It considers the Italian climatic zones, in accordance with the article 2 of the Decree of the President of the Republic, DPR 412/93. The zones are shown in Figure SM 1a and they are identified depending on the value of degree day ("Gradi giorno" in Italian,

indicated with *GG* henceforth). These are defined as: the positive daily differences between 20°C (the conventionally set ambient temperature), and the average daily outside temperature, summed over all days of a conventional annual heating period. Moreover, as shown in Figure SM 1b, specific time conditions in which the heating systems must be activated are defined for each zone.



Figure SM 1. a) Italian thermal zones identified to regulate the heating need. b) Periods and hours of heating activation, per thermal zone (elaborated from [8]).

To obtain the value of the average thermal energy requirement, the cubic meters of the dwelling have been multiplied for a specific thermal factor, function of location. It has been considered a fixed apartment height.

$$Average thermal requirement = Thermal Factor \cdot Volume$$
(SM
14)

Later, to find the daily thermal energy requirement (Equation (SM 15)), the value just obtained has been multiplied by the hours of heating activation, defined by GG.

Daily thermal requirement = Average thermal requirement
$$\cdot$$
 hours (5M)
15)

Finally, to obtain the hourly variation of the thermal load demand (Equation (SM 16)), DispaSET-SideTools was adopted [9]. The DispaSET-SideTools is a side-project that prepares various types of input data to the DispaSET readable format with the main purpose of data analysis and processing.

The Dispa-SET model [10]–[12] is an open-source unit commitment, and optimal dispatch model focused on the balancing and flexibility problems in European grids. DispaSET-SideTools instead provides the share of Italian hourly heating usage. In this way, it has been possible to obtain the hourly variation of the daily thermal demand.

After having obtained the hourly variation of the thermal demand in a day, so a daily heating demand, this has been repeated for all the days included in the activation period sanctioned by the DPR 412/93.

2.1.3 Cooling

The cooling demand was constructed with a method and assumptions very similar to those adopted for heating demand. Actually, no climatic zones exist as regards the cooling need. In the literature there are studies that report a variable cooling factor depending on the location though. Generally, that factor already considers the 6 hours of daily activation, without making distinction between cities [13]. In this work, the cooling activation period corresponds to the summer one. The daily requirement has been found by multiplying the cooling factor by the size of the space to be cooled.

$$Daily \ cooling \ requirement = Cooling \ factor \ \cdot \ Floor \ surface$$
(SM) (SM)

Then, to find the hourly variation of the cooling load demand (Equation (SM 18) as for heating, statistic data are used.

Hourly cooling demand = Daily cooling requirement
$$\cdot$$
 hourly share (18)

After having obtained the hourly variation of the cooling demand in a day, this has been repeated for all the days included in the activation period. Since there are no regulations, the activation period was supposed to be the summer-week for all the location analyzed.

2.1.4 Transport

The hourly variation for the transport demand was built from a random-function in MATLAB later adapted to the different drivers' behaviour according on statistical data. Different profiles demands have been created, each corresponding to different driver's behaviour:

- demand profiles designed on drivers who generally use the car for very short distances,
- demand profiles thought for drivers who, even just to reach the workplace for example, must travel longer daily distances,

1014

(SM

- demand profiles designed for intermediate needs.

For the last two types of drivers, the demand profiles also include moments of long journeys which could represent pleasure or work trips.

2.1.5 Domestic hot water

The demand for DHW is based on the knowledge of water consumption. From the Italian National Statistic Office (ISTAT) data, it is possible to know the total daily personal DHW consumption in each city [14]. This has been the starting point for the calculation of DHW demand. Moreover, it must be considered that, during the year, a peak consumption may occur. To obtain the maximum values, percentage increases have been added on the average ISTAT value of water consumption, as follows:

- +30%, for the month of maximum consumption. The months of maximum consumption are the summer months given the greater need for personal cleaning since the increased transpiration;
- +20%, for the days of maximum consumption. These are generally the festive and pre-festive.

These increases are cumulative over the average value. In this way it was possible to obtain the daily water consumption, still expressed in I/day/pp. This one presents the increases shown earlier, in related day/period of the year.

To obtain the daily power required for the heating of the water consumption, a multiplication between the water flow rate q, the water heat capacity c_p , and the difference between aqueduct water temperature T_a and home water temperature T_h is needed.

Domestic daily hot water demand =
$$q \cdot c_p \cdot (T_h - T_a)$$
 (SM)
19)

At the end, to find the hourly hot water demand, the DHW demand obtained in Equation (SM 19) was randomized in RAMP. Before proceeding for this step, it should be noted that the personal daily water consumption is usually divided as follows [15]:

- 60 l/day/pp for daily personal cleaning;
- 45 l/day/pp for hygienic;
- 50 l/day/pp for shower;
- 20 l/day/pp for dishes washing;
- 30 l/day/pp for laundry.

Basing on these values, the personal water consumption has been divided in three sub-categories:

- 24% shower;
- 51% personal cleaning and hygiene;
- 25% dishes washing and laundry.

This has been done because RAMP allows to consider the number of times in a day or a week in which an appliance could be used. Thanks to this opportunity, it was possible to differentiate the weekly usage of the dish washer or washing machine from the daily water usage for personal hygiene.

At the end, each sub-category has been randomized and then summed to the other in order to achieve again the 100% of the total hot water demand.

2.1.6 Cooking

Italy is more fossil-based than European Union in cooking sector. In fact, according to Eurostat [16], there is a large difference between EU and Italy especially regards the use of electricity for cooking: it is equal to about 50% for the EU and only 16% for Italy. Instead, the reverse happens for the use of natural gas for cooking, equal to 31% for the EU and more than double for Italy. The Italian government, in the National Energy Strategy (SEN) of 2017 [17], planned to implement a process of gradual replacement of fossil fuels with renewable sources. The expected trend is therefore to reduce as much as possible fossil sources and so, the implicit attempt is to orient, where it is possible, towards electricity-based technologies. For what concerns the cooking demand, there should be the need of a technological switch, from the gas stove to induction one. It should be also noted that the induction stove has twice the efficiency of the gas stove [18].

RAMP has been used also for the calculation of the cooking demand. In this way it was possible to randomize different combinations of breakfast-lunch-dinner typologies [19]. Each meal of the Italian diet has been characterized through parameters already seen for the construction of the electricity demand (e.g. the required power developed by the stove, cooking duration, minimum cooking time...). For the cooking demand also other parameters has been considered:

- the stove thermal power variation;
- the number of behavioural preferences randomizations;
- the presence of specific cycles in which more power levels are maintained for a specific period.

The last point simply describes the level of power to cook a specific plate: a piece of meat could be cooked for the initial few minutes at high power and for the last minutes at low power.

2.2. Techno-economic data

Each technology, considered within the reference energy system described in Section 3.2. of the main manuscript, has been characterized by economic and environmental parameters. In particular regarding economic data, the specific investment cost (expressed per minimum unit of capacity installed) and the specific operation cost (expressed per unit of energy produced) were needed, while each technology has been characterized also by emission factors: the specific carbon emissions embedded (expressed per minimum unit of capacity installed) and the specific direct carbon emissions (expressed per unit of energy produced). The following tables resumes such information.

Table SM 1. Economic input parameters characterizing each technology included in the reference energy system. ** The electricity price coming from the national grid is one of the sensitivity parameters, therefore it is variable among 0.15 and $0.45 \in /kWh$.

Technology	Minimum capacity unit	Energy production unit	Specific investment cost [€/minimum capacity unit]	Specific operation cost [€/production unit]	References
National grid	3 kW	kWhe	0	**	[20]
Photovoltaic panels	1 kW	kWh _e	2500	0	[21]
Home battery system	7 kW	kWh _e	8000	0	[22]
ICEV	1 car	km	17000	0.11	[23], [24]
BEV	1 car	km	27300	0	[25]
Gas boiler	24 kW	kWh _{th}	1000	0.11	[26]
Heat pump	4 kW	kWh _{th}	1000	0	[27]
Solar thermal panel	1 kW	kWh _{th}	1300	0	[28]
Gas Stove	6 kW	kWh _{th}	250	0.25	[29]
Induction stove	6 kW	kWhe	400	0	[30]
Thermal insulation	m²	- kWh _{th}	12852	0	[31]

Table SM 2. Environmental input parameters characterizing each technology included in the reference energy system

Technology	Minimum capacity unit	Energy production unit	Specific carbon footprint [kgCO2eq/ minimum capacity unit]	Specific direct carbon emissions [kgCO2eq/ production unit]	References
National grid	3 kW	kWhe	0	0.30	[32]
Photovoltaic panels	1 kW	kWh _e	80	0	[33], [34]
Home battery system	7 kW	kWhe	615	0	[35]
ICEV	1 car	km	8000	0.15	[36], [37]
BEV	1 car	km	8350	0	[36], [37]
Gas boiler	24 kW	kWh _{th}	130	0.26	[38], [39]
Heat pump	4 kW	kWh _{th}	30	0	[40]
Solar thermal panel	1 kW	kWh _{th}	300	0	[41], [42]
Gas stove	6 kW	kWh _{th}	62	0.31	[43]–[45]
Induction stove	6 kW	kWhe	97	0	[43], [46]
Thermal insulation	m²	- kWh _{th}	514	0	[47], [48]

Regarding, in the end, the discount rate r, it was decided to use the 10 years yield of Italian government bonds, which at the moment of writing is around 4%.

3. Results: complementary information

This section provides additional outcomes which complement the result analysis performed in the main manuscript (Section 4). In particular, it is interesting to try visualizing the second-order implications on BEV

preferability, obtainable investigating those clusters of solutions in which tuples of sensitivity parameters values can be matched together. In particular, the following Figures provide heatmaps showing the number of solutions in which BEV is preferred when two sensitivity parameters assume respectively the value on the rows and on the columns of each table.

		Annual travelled distance [km]							
		5000	10000	20000	25000				
Ownership	3	0	0	18	117				
time	5	0	0	390	778				
[years]	7	0	91	1096	1354				
	10	0	623	1541	1575				
Grid	0.45	0	102	395	473				
electricity	0.4	0	104	396	479				
price	0.35	0	102	400	504				
[€/kWh]	0.3	0	102	421	527				
	0.25	0	100	431	572				
	0.2	0	96	489	612				
	0.15	0	108	513	657				
	_								
Gasoline	1.4	0	0	352	497				
price	1.6	0	63	496	652				
[€/litre]	1.8	0	126	618	793				
	2	0	216	744	895				
	2.2	0	309	835	987				
	_								
BEV	1000	0	0	409	582				
incentives	2000	0	57	509	666				
[€]	3000	0	125	596	746				
	4000	0	189	711	870				
	5000	0	343	820	960				

		Annua	al travelle	ed distan	ce [km]
		5000	10000	20000	25000
PV	0	0	18	405	698
capacity	1	0	66	348	478
[kW]	2	0	37	220	276
	3	0	171	178	226
	4	0	272	120	136
	5	0	70	738	179
	6	0	30	716	1055
	7	0	10	123	476
	8	0	10	50	150
	9	0	0	24	25
	10	0	0	41	21
	11	0	10	7	29
	12	0	0	0	0
	13	0	10	25	25
	14	0	0	0	0
	15	0	10	25	25
	16	0	0	0	0
	17	0	0	0	0
	18	0	0	25	25

Figure SM 2. Influence of the variation of "annual travelled distance" parameter on BEV preferability, matched with the variation of each other sensitivity parameter. BEV preferability is proxied by the color scale of the heatmaps. The values contained in each cell refer to the number of solutions where BEV is preferred in the conditions determined by matching row-column information.

		Ownership time [years]										
		3	5	7	10							
Annual	5000	0	0	0	0							
travelled	10000	0	0	91	623							
distance	20000	18	390	1096	1541							
[km]	25000	117	778	1354	1575							
Grid	0.45	0	100	336	534							
electricity	0.4	0	104	342	533							
price	0.35	9	121	342	534							
[€/kWh]	0.3	9	159	347	535							
	0.25	27	180	362	534							
	0.2	36	243	389	529							
	0.15	54	261	423	540							
Gasoline	1.4	0	27	226	596							
price	1.6	0	97	421	693							
[€/litre]	1.8	9	219	553	756							
	2	36	353	648	818							
	2.2	90	472	693	876							
BEV	1000	0	57	335	599							
incentives	2000	0	126	422	684							
<i>[</i> €]	3000	0	212	500	755							
	4000	36	337	578	819							
	5000	99	436	706	882							

		Ownership time [years]										
		3	5	7	10							
PV	0	134	564	423	0							
capacity	1	1	273	258	360							
[kW]	2	0	69	287	177							
	3	0	71	218	286							
	4	0	47	136	345							
	5	0	107	414	466							
	6	0	37	679	1085							
	7	0	0	126	483							
	8	0	0	0	210							
	9	0	0	0	49							
	10	0	0	0	62							
	11	0	0	0	46							
	12	0	0	0	0							
	13	0	0	0	60							
	14	0	0	0	0							
	15	0	0	0	60							
	16	0	0	0	0							
	17	0	0	0	0							
	18	0	0	0	50							

Figure SM 3. Influence of the variation of "ownership time" parameter on BEV preferability, matched with the variation of each other sensitivity parameter. BEV preferability is proxied by the color scale of the heatmaps. The values contained in each cell refer to the number of solutions where BEV is preferred in the conditions determined by matching row-column information.

Grid electricity price [€/kWh]										Grid elec	ctricity p	orice [€/l	kWh]				
		0.45	0.4	0.35	0.3	0.25	0.2	0.15			0.45	0.4	0.35	0.3	0.25	0.2	0.15
Annual	5000	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	PV	0	0	0	8	9	87	279	738
travelled	10000	102	104	102	102	100	96	108	capacity	1	0	0	49	105	120	258	360
distance	20000	395	396	400	421	431	489	513	[kW]	2	0	9	24	36	156	188	120
[km]	25000	473	479	504	527	572	612	657		3	13	45	33	125	153	146	60
										4	39	51	87	124	100	127	0
Ownership	3	0	0	9	9	27	36	54		5	152	172	176	222	165	100	0
time	5	100	104	121	159	180	243	261		6	325	368	408	329	272	99	0
[years]	7	336	342	342	347	362	389	423		7	162	151	146	100	50	0	0
	10	534	533	534	535	534	529	540		8	110	50	50	0	0	0	0
										9	0	24	25	0	0	0	0
Gasoline	1.4	107	107	108	111	116	138	162		10	24	38	0	0	0	0	0
price	1.6	152	152	155	162	176	198	216		11	35	11	0	0	0	0	0
[€/litre]	1.8	195	198	204	211	225	243	261		12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2	239	242	247	260	272	289	306		13	50	10	0	0	0	0	0
	2.2	277	280	292	306	314	329	333		14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
										15	10	50	0	0	0	0	0
BEV	1000	128	127	129	139	141	156	171		16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
incentives	2000	155	159	161	168	179	194	216		17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
[<i>E</i>]	3000	188	190	197	203	213	233	243		18	50	0	0	0	0	0	0
	4000	226	227	235	244	262	279	297									
	5000	273	276	284	296	308	335	351									

Figure SM 4. Influence of the variation of "grid electricity price" parameter on BEV preferability, matched with the variation of each other sensitivity parameter. BEV preferability is proxied by the color scale of the heatmaps. The values contained in each cell refer to the number of solutions where BEV is preferred in the conditions determined by matching row-column information.

Gasoline price [€/litre]							Gasoline price [€/litre]						
		1.4	1.6	1.8	2	2.2		_	1.4	1.6	1.8	2	2.2
Annual	5000	0	0	0	0	0	PV	0	81	150	219	297	374
travelled	10000	0	63	126	216	309	capacity	1	90	132	176	223	271
distance	20000	352	496	618	744	835	[kW]	2	56	83	110	133	151
[km]	25000	497	652	793	895	987		3	42	75	110	157	191
								4	26	64	101	144	193
Ownership	3	0	0	9	36	90		5	101	153	202	250	281
time	5	27	97	219	353	472		6	250	331	384	411	425
[years]	7	226	421	553	648	693		7	106	119	127	128	129
	10	596	693	756	818	876		8	40	41	42	43	44
								9	9	10	10	10	10
Grid	0.45	107	152	195	239	277		10	9	15	15	12	11
electricity	0.4	107	152	198	242	280		11	9	6	7	11	13
price	0.35	108	155	204	247	292		12	0	0	0	0	0
[€/kWh]	0.3	111	162	211	260	306		13	10	11	12	13	14
	0.25	116	176	225	272	314		14	0	0	0	0	0
	0.2	138	198	243	289	329		15	10	11	12	13	14
	0.15	162	216	261	306	333		16	0	0	0	0	0
	_							17	0	0	0	0	0
BEV	1000	95	151	194	260	291		18	10	10	10	10	10
incentives	2000	132	180	251	285	384							
<i>[</i> €]	3000	155	228	279	384	421							
	4000	212	276	384	430	468							
	5000	255	376	429	496	567							

Figure SM 5. Influence of the variation of "gasoline price" parameter on BEV preferability, matched with the variation of each other sensitivity parameter. BEV preferability is proxied by the color scale of the heatmaps. The values contained in each cell refer to the number of solutions where BEV is preferred in the conditions determined by matching row-column information.

		BEV ind			BEV inc	centives	[€]				
		1000	2000	3000	4000	5000			1000	2000	3000
Annual	5000	0	0	0	0	0	PV	0	102	159	192
travelled	10000	0	57	125	189	343	capacity	1	108	133	176
distance	20000	409	509	596	711	820	[kW]	2	69	87	101
[km]	25000	582	666	746	870	960		3	53	78	105
								4	34	61	99
Ownership	3	0	0	0	36	99		5	125	161	199
time	5	57	126	212	337	436		6	291	331	365
[years]	7	335	422	500	578	706		7	112	118	122
	10	599	684	755	819	882		8	40	41	42
								9	9	10	10
Grid	0.45	128	155	188	226	273		10	10	13	14
electricity	0.4	127	159	190	227	276		11	8	8	8
price	0.35	129	161	197	235	284		12	0	0	0
[€/kWh]	0.3	139	168	203	244	296		13	10	11	12
	0.25	141	179	213	262	308		14	0	0	0
	0.2	156	194	233	279	335		15	10	11	12
	0.15	171	216	243	297	351		16	0	0	0
								17	0	0	0
Gasoline	1.4	95	132	155	212	255		18	10	10	10
price	1.6	151	180	228	276	376					
[€/litre]	1.8	194	251	279	384	429					
	2	260	285	384	430	496					
	2.2	291	384	421	468	567					

Figure SM 6. Influence of the variation of "BEV incentives" parameter on BEV preferability, matched with the variation of each other sensitivity parameter. BEV preferability is proxied by the color scale of the heatmaps. The values contained in each cell refer to the number of solutions where BEV is preferred in the conditions determined by matching row-column information.

PV capacity [kW]																				
		0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
Annual	5000	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
travelled	10000	18	66	37	171	272	70	30	10	10	0	0	10	0	10	0	10	0	0	0
distance	20000	405	348	220	178	120	738	716	123	50	24	41	7	0	25	0	25	0	0	25
[km]	25000	698	478	276	226	136	179	1055	476	150	25	21	29	0	25	0	25	0	0	25
Ownership	3	134	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
time	5	564	273	69	71	47	107	37	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
[years]	7	423	258	287	218	136	414	679	126	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	10	0	360	177	286	345	466	1085	483	210	49	62	46	0	60	0	60	0	0	50
Grid	0.45	0	0	0	13	39	152	325	162	110	0	24	35	0	50	0	10	0	0	50
electricity	0.4	0	0	9	45	51	172	368	151	50	24	38	11	0	10	0	50	0	0	0
price	0.35	8	49	24	33	87	176	408	146	50	25	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
[€/kWh]	0.3	9	105	36	125	124	222	329	100	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0.25	87	120	156	153	100	165	272	50	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0.2	279	258	188	146	127	100	99	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0,15	738	360	120	60	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
o "					10		101	050	100	10	0	-	0	0	10	0	10	-	-	10
Gasoline	1.4	81	90	56	42	26	101	250	106	40	9	9	9	0	10	0	10	0	0	10
price	1.6	150	132	83	/5	64	153	331	119	41	10	15	6	0	11	0	11	0	0	10
[€/litre]	1.8	219	1/6	100	110		202	384	127	42	10	15		0	12	0	12	0	0	10
	2	297	223	133	101	144	250	411	128	43	10	12	10	0	13	0	13	0	0	10
	2.2	374	271	151	191	193	281	425	129	44	10	11	13	0	14	0	14	0	U	10
	1000	100	100	60	52	24	105	201	110	40	0	10	0	0	10	0	10	0	0	10
DL V	2000	102	100	09	70	61	161	201	112	40	10	10	0	0	10	0	10	0	0	10
IIIUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU	2000 3000	102	176	101	105		100	365	100	41	10	1/	g	0	10	0	10	0	0	10
[C]	1000 1000	270	220	126	130	137	234	395	122	42	10	12	11	0	13	0	13	0	0	10
	5000	380	220	150	200	107	204	/10	120	40	10	13	11	0	14	0	1/	0	0	10
	5000	909	200	-130	200	191	200	419	129	-+-+	10	10		0	14	0	14	0	0	10

Figure SM 7. Influence of the variation of "PV capacity" parameter on BEV preferability, matched with the variation of each other sensitivity parameter. BEV preferability is proxied by the color scale of the heatmaps. The values contained in each cell refer to the number of solutions where BEV is preferred in the conditions determined by matching row-column information.

References

- F. Duchin and S. H. Levine, 'Sectors may use multiple technologies simultaneously: The rectangular choice-of-technology model with binding factor constraints', *Econ. Syst. Res.*, vol. 23, no. 3, pp. 281–302, 2011, doi: 10.1080/09535314.2011.571238.
- [2] R. E. Miller and P. D. Blair, *Input-Output Analysis: Foundations and Extensions*, 2nd ed. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2009. doi: DOI: 10.1017/CBO9780511626982.
- [3] J. Palazzo, R. Geyer, and S. Suh, 'A review of methods for characterizing the environmental consequences of actions in life cycle assessment', *J. Ind. Ecol.*, pp. 1–15, 2020, doi: 10.1111/jiec.12983.
- [4] S. Pfenninger and I. Staffell, 'Long-term patterns of European PV output using 30 years of validated hourly reanalysis and satellite data', *Energy*, vol. 114, pp. 1251–1265, 2016, doi: 10.1016/j.energy.2016.08.060.
- [5] I. Staffell and S. Pfenninger, 'Using bias-corrected reanalysis to simulate current and future wind power output', *Energy*, vol. 114, pp. 1224–1239, 2016, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.energy.2016.08.068.
- [6] UNI 10380 Illuminotecnica. Illuminazione di interni con luce artificiale. 1994.
- [7] F. Lombardi, S. Balderrama, S. Quoilin, and E. Colombo, 'Generating high-resolution multi-energy load profiles for remote areas with an open-source stochastic model', *Energy*, vol. 177, pp. 433–444, 2019, doi: 10.1016/j.energy.2019.04.097.
- [8] Presidenza della Repubblica Italiana, D.P.R 26 agosto 1993 n. 412. Italy, 1993.
- [9] M. Pavicevic, 'DispaSET-SideTools repository', *Github*, 2019. https://github.com/MPavicevic/DispaSET-SideTools
- [10] G. Hidalgo, S. Quoilin, and A. Zucker, 'Dispa-SET 2.0: unit commitment and power dispatch model', 2014.
- [11] S. Quoilin, G. Hidalgo, and A. Zucker, 'Modelling Future EU Power Systems Under High Shares of Renewables: The Dispa-SET 2.1 open-source model', 2017.

- [12] K. Kavvadias, G. Hidalgo, A. Zucker, and S. Quoilin, 'Integrated modelling of future EU power and heat systems: The Dispa-SET v2.2 open-source model', 2018.
- [13] F. Mancini and G. Lo Basso, 'How Climate Change Affects the Building Energy Consumptions Due to Cooling, Heating, and Electricity Demands of Italian Residential Sector', *Energies*, vol. 13, no. 2, 2020, doi: 10.3390/en13020410.
- [14] ISTAT, 'Le statistiche dell'ISTAT sull'acqua Anni 2019-2021', 2022.
- [15] E. Bettanini and P. Brunello, Lezioni di impianti tecnici, no. v. 2. CLEUP, 1990.
- [16] Eurostat, 'Energy consumption in households by type of end-use', 2019. https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/statisticsexplained/index.php?title=Energy_consumption_in_households#Energy_consumption_in_households_b
 - explained/index.pnp?title=Energy_consumption_in_nousenoids#Energy_consumption_in_nousenoids_c y_type_of_end-use (accessed Sep. 06, 2022).
- [17] Ministero dello Sviluppo Economico, Italy's National Energy Strategt. Italy, 2017.
- [18] US Department of Energy, 'Energy Conservation Program: Test Procedures for Cooking Products', 2014.
- [19] Coldiretti, 'CENSIS IL PRIMO RAPPORTO SULLE ABITUDINI ALIMENTARI DEGLI ITALIANI. Alcuni flash', 2010.
- [20] Gestore Mercati Energetici, 'Summary Data MPE-MGP Monthly Summary', 2022. https://www.mercatoelettrico.org/En/Statistiche/ME/GraphMensile.aspx (accessed Aug. 04, 2022).
- [21] IRENA, 'Renewable power generation costs in 2021', Abu Dhabi, 2022.
- [22] TESLA, 'Powerwall', 2021. https://www.tesla.com/powerwall (accessed Sep. 07, 2022).
- [23] FIAT, 'Configuratore Fiat 500', 2022. https://www.fiat.it/car-configurator/500/#/version (accessed Sep. 07, 2022).
- [24] FIAT, 'FIAT 500 brochure', 2022.
- [25] 'Electric Vehicle Database', 2022. https://ev-database.org/
- [26] BOSCH, 'Caldaia a condensazione Condens 2200 W', 2022. https://www.bosch-thermotechnology.com/ (accessed Sep. 07, 2022).
- [27] Daikin, 'Siesta ARXP-M', 2022. https://www.daikin.it/it_it/cerca-prodotto/arxp-m.html
- [28] Panneli-Solari24, 'Solare termico prezzi', 2022. https://www.pannelli-solari24.it/pannelli-solariprezzi/solare-termico-prezzi/ (accessed Sep. 07, 2022).
- [29] GLEMGAS, 'GT64TF', 2022. https://www.glemgas.com/ita/prodotti_cottura/piani-cottura/piano-cotturada-60-cm-4_gt64tf (accessed Sep. 07, 2022).
- [30] Whirlpool, 'WL B8160 NE', 2022. https://www.whirlpool.it/piano-cottura-a-induzione-in-vetroceramicawhirlpool-wl-b8160-ne-869991572110/p (accessed Sep. 07, 2022).
- [31] DEI, Prezzi informativi dell'edilizia. Recupero Ristrutturazioni Manutenzione. 1/2021. DEI TIPOGRAFIA DEL GENIO CIVILE, 2021.
- [32] A. Caputo, 'Fattori di emissione atmosferica di gas a effetto serra nel settore elettrico nazionale e nei principali Paesi Europei', 2018.
- [33] A. Stoppato, 'Life cycle assessment of photovoltaic electricity generation', *Energy*, vol. 33, no. 2, pp. 224–232, 2008, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.energy.2007.11.012.
- [34] Y. Tripanagnostopoulos, M. Souliotis, R. Battisti, and A. Corrado, 'Energy, cost and LCA results of PV and hybrid PV/T solar systems', *Prog. Photovolt. Res. Appl.*, vol. 13, no. 3, pp. 235–250, May 2005, doi: https://doi.org/10.1002/pip.590.
- [35] S. I. Sun, Financial and Environmental Life Cycle Assessment of Domestic PV-battery Systems. 2020.
- [36] H. L. MacLean and L. B. Lave, 'Life Cycle Assessment of Automobile/Fuel Options', *Environ. Sci. Technol.*, vol. 37, no. 23, pp. 5445–5452, Dec. 2003, doi: 10.1021/es034574q.
- [37] T. R. Hawkins, B. Singh, G. Majeau-Bettez, and A. H. Strømman, 'Comparative Environmental Life Cycle Assessment of Conventional and Electric Vehicles', *J. Ind. Ecol.*, vol. 17, no. 1, pp. 53–64, Feb. 2013, doi: https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1530-9290.2012.00532.x.
- [38] D. Cespi, 'Impatto ambientale di sistemi di riscaldamento domestico a biomasse: applicazione della metodologia LCA (Life Cycle Assessment)', 2011.
- [39] G. Vignali, 'Environmental assessment of domestic boilers: A comparison of condensing and traditional technology using life cycle assessment methodology', *J. Clean. Prod.*, vol. 142, pp. 2493–2508, 2017, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2016.11.025.
- [40] M. Smith, A. Bevacqua, S. Tembe, and P. Lal, 'Life cycle analysis (LCA) of residential ground source heat pump systems: A comparative analysis of energy efficiency in New Jersey', *Sustain. Energy Technol. Assess.*, vol. 47, p. 101364, 2021, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.seta.2021.101364.
- [41] F. Ardente, G. Beccali, M. Cellura, and V. Lo Brano, 'Life cycle assessment of a solar thermal collector: sensitivity analysis, energy and environmental balances', *Renew. Energy*, vol. 30, no. 2, pp. 109–130, 2005, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.renene.2004.05.006.
- [42] F. Ardente, G. Beccali, M. Cellura, and V. Lo Brano, 'Life cycle assessment of a solar thermal collector', *Renew. Energy*, vol. 30, no. 7, pp. 1031–1054, 2005, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.renene.2004.09.009.

- [43] D. Landi, A. Consolini, M. Germani, and C. Favi, 'Comparative life cycle assessment of electric and gas ovens in the Italian context: An environmental and technical evaluation', *J. Clean. Prod.*, vol. 221, pp. 189– 201, 2019, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2019.02.196.
- [44] C. Favi, M. Germani, D. Landi, M. Mengarelli, and M. Rossi, 'Comparative life cycle assessment of cooking appliances in Italian kitchens', *J. Clean. Prod.*, vol. 186, pp. 430–449, 2018, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2018.03.140.
- [45] BEIS, '2018 Government GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting: Methodology paper for emission factors: final report', 2018.
- [46] D. Elduque, C. Javierre, C. Pina, E. Martínez, and E. Jiménez, 'Life cycle assessment of a domestic induction hob: electronic boards', *J. Clean. Prod.*, vol. 76, pp. 74–84, 2014, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2014.04.009.
- [47] S. Taborelli, E. Furno, and M. Piana, 'EPS: Impatto ambientale e ciclo di vita', Milano, 2014.
- [48] EPDITALY, 'Environmental product declaration ECO-ESPANSO K100', 2018.